
 
 
 

 
 

City of Apopka 
Planning Commission 

Meeting Agenda 
December 12, 2017 

5:30 PM @ City Council Chambers 
 
I.     CALL TO ORDER 
 
If you wish to appear before the Planning Commission, please submit a “Notice of Intent to Speak” 
card to the Recording Secretary. 
 
II.    OPENING AND INVOCATION 
 
III.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 
1 Approve minutes of the Planning Commission regular meeting held November 14, 2017. 
 
IV.    PUBLIC HEARING: 
 

1. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – From “County” Rural 
to “City” Mixed Use Interchange (0-5 du/ac) for property owned by Orlando Beltway Associates; the West 
Parcel is located west of S.R. 429 and north of Kelly Park Road; and the East Parcel is located east of S.R. 
429 and north of Kelly Park Road.  (Parcel ID Nos. 12-20-27-0000-00-100 – East Parcel; 12-20-27-0000-
00-047 – West Parcel)  

 
V.     SITE PLANS: 
 

1. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – ADAMS BROTHERS CONSTRUCTION COMPANY - Owned by Adams 
Brothers Construction Company, c/o Aaron Adams; and located between Tilden Avenue and South 
Apopka Boulevard on the south side of East 13th (Parcel ID #: 15-21-28-0000-00-210) 

 
2. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – KMG FENCE NEW HEADQUARTERS – Owned by KMG Fence, LLC, c/o 

Karen and Joe Grimsley; and located on Johns Road (Northwest corner of Johns Road and Bradshaw 
Road). (PARCEL ID #: 09-21-28-3986-00-010) 

 
3. PLAT - NORTHWEST DISTRIBUTION CENTER II REPLAT LOTS 3 & 4 – Owned by Oakmont Apopka 

Road LLC; and located west of Ocoee Apopka Road, east of SR 451, and north of SR 414. (Parcel ID #s: 
17-21-28-5953-03-000; 17-21-28-5953-04-000) 

 
VI.    OLD BUSINESS: 
 
VII.   NEW BUSINESS: 
 
VIII.  ADJOURNMENT: 
 
********************************************************************************************************** 
All interested parties may appear and be heard with respect to this agenda.  Please be advised that, under state law, if you decide to appeal 
any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, you will need a record of the 
proceedings, and that, for such purpose, you may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes a 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.   The City of Apopka does not provide a verbatim record.    
 
In accordance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), persons with disabilities needing a special accommodation to participate in any 
of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk's Office at 120 East Main Street, Apopka, FL  32703, telephone (407) 703-1704, no less 
than 48 hours prior to the proceeding. 

1



Page 2 
 
  

2



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON NOVEMBER 14, 
2017, AT 5:30 P.M. IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, APOPKA, FLORIDA. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: James Greene, Tony Foster, Linda Laurendeau, Jose Molina, and John 
Sprinkle 
 
ABSENT: Roger Simpson, Orange County Public Schools (Non-voting) 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  David Moon, AICP - Planning Manager, Richard Earp – City Engineer, 
Patrick Brackins – City Attorney, Bobby Howell – Senior Planner, Phil Martinez – Planner I, Jean 
Sanchez – Planner I, and Jeanne Green – Recording Secretary. 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: Peter Dailey, Tom Adams, Carol Adams, Jim Hall, Sandra Martinez, 
Denise Prescott, Art Wilson, Barry Kalmanson, Jeb Bittaer, Suzanne Kidd, Lydia Glover, Camden 
Young, Teresa Sargeant – Apopka Chief 
 
OPENING AND INVOCATION:  Chairman Greene called the meeting to order and asked for a 
moment of silent prayer.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Chairperson Greene asked if there were any corrections or 
additions to the regular meeting minutes of October 10, 2017, at 5:30 p.m.   
 
Motion: Tony Foster made a motion to approve the Planning Commission minutes 

from the regular meeting held on October 10, 2017, at 5:30 p.m. and seconded 
by Linda Laurendeau. Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Tony Foster, 
Linda Laurendeau, Jose Molina, and John Sprinkle (5-0). 

 
LEGISLATIVE - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE 
AMENDMENT – AHIFO-18 LLC - Chairperson Greene stated this is a request to find the 
proposed Future Land Use Designation consistent with the Comprehensive Plan; to recommend 
approval of the Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment from “County” Rural Settlement to 
“City” Mixed Use Interchange for the property owned by AHIFO-18 LLC and located on the north 
side of West Kelly Park Road, west of Plymouth-Sorrento Road; and recommend transmittal to 
the Florida Department of Economic Opportunities for review. 
 
Staff Presentation:  David Moon, AICP, Planning Manager, stated this is a request to find the 
proposed Future Land Use Designation consistent with the Comprehensive Plan; to recommend 
approval of the Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment from “County” Rural Settlement to 
“City” Mixed Use Interchange for property located on the north side of West Kelly Park Road, 
west of Plymouth-Sorrento Road; and recommend transmittal to the Florida Department of 
Economic Opportunities for review.  The owner is AHIFO-18 LLC and the applicant is VHB, c/o 
Jim Hall.  The existing use is an equestrian ranch and single family home.  The current zoning is 
“County” PD (ZIP).  The proposed zoning is Mixed Use Interchange with a Neighborhood Residential 
Overlay District.  The proposed development is a detached single family residential subdivision in a 
Neighborhood Overlay District.  The tract size is 51 +/- acres.  The existing maximum allowable 
development is 5 units (up to 1 unit per 10 acres); and the proposed is a maximum of 255 du (5.0 
du/ac). 
 

Presently, the subject property does not have a “City” future land use designation or “City” zoning 

classification assigned. The applicant requests a future land use designation of “City” Mixed Use 

Interchange.  Presently, the applicant proposes a residential subdivision consistent with the 

Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District, as defined in the Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based Code. 

3



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON NOVEMBER 14, 2017, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
2 of 10 

 

Policy 20.9, Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan, requires that a Mixed Use 

Interchange future a land use designation must be assigned to the property. 

 

The subject property is located within the one-mile radius from the Wekiva Parkway interchange 

at Kelly Park Road,; and  are located within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area.  

Each parcel is therefore subject to the Kelly Park Crossing Form Based Code Area.   Therefore, 

the property must comply with Objectives 18 – 20 and related policies within the Future Land Use 

Element of the Comprehensive Plan and the recently adopted Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based 

Code.  The applicant’s request is consistent with the Mixed Use Interchange future land use 

designation.  While the majority of the subject property lies within the Neighborhood Overlay 

District of the Wekiva Parkway Vision Plan and the Kelly Park Form Based Code Area, a small 

portion of its southeast corner lies within the Transitional Overlay Zone (5 -15 units\acre).  At the 

time of zoning application, the application of the Overlay district will be determined. 

 

The proposed use of the property is compatible with the character of the surrounding area, is within 

one mile of the SR 429/Kelly Park Road interchange, and is consistent with the Mixed Use 

Interchange Land Use designation.  City planning staff supports the FLUM amendment given the 

consistency with the Comprehensive Plan policies listed below and the intent of the Wekiva 

Parkway Interchange Vision Plan a (see Land Use Analysis below).   Site development cannot 

exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies.  

 
Future Land Use Element 
 

1. Policy 3.1.r The primary intent of the Mixed Use land use category is to allow a mixture of 
residential, office, commercial, industrial, recreation, institutional and public facilities uses 
to serve the residential and non-residential needs of special areas of the City.  The mix of 
land uses may occur on a single parcel or multiple parcels … 
 
The designation of a mixed use category may occur only in certain areas of the city, 
including “land anticipated for inclusion within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Land Use 
Plan…” These properties are within the 1-mile radius of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange 
depicted on the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Map located within the Future 
Land Use Element of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan. 
 

2. Policy 18.1 The City shall implement the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan, which 
guides the location of a range of uses, such as residential, office, commercial, industrial, 
recreation, public and institutional, at various densities and intensities around the proposed 
interchange. 
 
The proposed Mixed Use Future Land Use Designation allows for residential densities and 
non-residential uses and intensities to implement the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision 
Plan, consistent with Objective 18 and related policies.  
 

3. Policy 18.2: Prior to rezoning any property within a one-mile radius of the interchange 
Study Area, the City shall amend its LDC to incorporate development standards that will 
implement the Vision Plan. 
 
The City adopted a Form-Based Code for the Wekiva Parkway Vision Plan Area, titled the 
“Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based Code”, on June 21, 2017 through Ordinance 2577.   
 

4



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON NOVEMBER 14, 2017, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
3 of 10 

 

4. Policy 20.4: Prior to approving the first development plan with the Wekiva Parkway 
Interchange vision Plan Area, the City shall adopt the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Form-
Based Cod establishing the design and development standards for the Wekiva Parkway 
Interchange Vision Plan Area. 
 
The subject properties will be required to comply with the above policy should the 
development submit a development plan to ensure consistency with the Comprehensive 
Plan and Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan. 
 

5. Policy 20.9: Development within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Plan Area shall be 
assigned a Mixed-Use Interchange future land use designation and shall accomplish an 
overall mix of residential and non-residential uses as outline in Policy 3.1.r.  Assignment of 
the Mixed-Use Interchange Land Use future land use designation shall require an 
amendment to the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The applicant’s request for a Mixed Use Interchange future land use designation is 
consistent with this policy, as well as the intent of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision 
Plan area, which intends to concentrate a mixture of land uses with varying densities and 
intensities within one mile of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange. 
 

6. Policy 20.3:  The annexation, land use change, and subsequent development of lands located 
within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Plan Area for Apopka and the Wekiva Interchange 
Land Use Plan Overlay for the County shall be consistent with the adopted Interlocal 
Agreement between Orange County and the City of Apopka regarding Wekiva Interchange 
Land Use Plan Overlay. 
 

7. Objective 19 and 20, and their associated policies.  See objectives and policies within the 
supporting information. 

 
Transportation Element 
 

1. Policy 4.2 The City of Apopka shall promote, through the implementation of programs 
such as mixed-use land development, projects that support reduced travel demand, short 
trip lengths and balanced trip demand. 

 
The Mixed Use Interchange future land use designation allows for a mixture of land use 
types such as residential and non-residential, which promotes shorter trip lengths, 
concentrated development to reduce travel demand. 

 
2. Policy 3.1.r The primary intent of the Mixed Use Interchange land use category is to allow 

a mixture of residential, office, commercial, industrial, recreation, institutional uses and 
public facilities uses…This mix of land uses may occur on a single parcel or multiple 
parcels in the form of: a permitted single use; a vertical combination of different permitted 
uses; or a horizontal mix of different permitted uses. 

 
3. Policy 4.2 The City of Apopka shall promote, through the implementation of programs 

such as mixed-use land development, projects that support reduced travel demand, shorter 
trip lengths and balanced trip demand. 

 
4. Objective 20 and associated Policies, Future Land Use Element.  Provided with the 

Supporting Information. 

 

5



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON NOVEMBER 14, 2017, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
4 of 10 

 

The property is located within the boundaries of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan 

Area, making it subject to the” Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based Code”, Mixed- Use Interchange 

Zoning District and Neighborhood Overlay District.  A copy of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange 

Vision Plan is provided with the support material. 

 

An executed capacity enhancement agreement with Orange County Public Schools will be 

required prior to adoption of the future land use amendment. 

 

The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board.   

Notification has already occurred through the Second Amendment to the Joint Planning Agreement 

with Orange County government.  The second amendment acknowledges that the City will assign 

a land use designation similar to the overlay district illustrated in the Wekiva Parkway Interchange 

Vision Plan. 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed FLUM amendment to be consistent with 

the Comprehensive Plan and recommends approval to transmit a change in Future Land Use to 

Mixed Use Interchange for the property owned by AHIFO-18 LLC subject to the information and 

findings in the staff report. 

 

Staff recommended the Planning Commission find the Mixed Use Interchange Future Land Use 

Designation consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and recommend a change in Future Land Use 

Designation from “County” Rural Settlement to “City” Mixed Use Interchange for the properties 

owned by AHIFO-18 LLC subject to the information and findings in the staff report. 

 

This item is considered legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 

made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
In response to a question by Mr. Foster, Mr. Moon stated that several projects have been presented 
to the Planning Commission in the last few months that were requesting similar future land use 
amendments to Mixed Use Interchange.  As future expansion occurs in the Wekiva Parkway 
Interchange area similar requests will be presented to the Planning Commission. 
 
Jim Hall, VHB, 225 East Robinson Street, Suite 300, Orlando, stated he was representing AHIFO-

18 LLC.  He concurred with staff and he was available to answer any questions from the Planning 

Commission. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.   With no one wishing to speak, 
Chairperson Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Jose Molina made a motion to find the application consistent with the Apopka 

Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding 
area; and to recommend approval of the Large Scale Future Land use 
amendment from “County” Rural Settlement to “City” Mixed Use 
Interchange for the property owned by AHIFO-18 LLC and located on the 
north side of West Kelly Park Road, west of Plymouth-Sorrento Road; and 
recommend transmittal to the Department of Economic Opportunity.  Motion 
seconded by Linda Laurendeau.  Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Tony 
Foster, Linda Laurendeau, Jose Molina, and John Sprinkle (5-0).  (Vote taken 
by poll.) 

6



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON NOVEMBER 14, 2017, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
5 of 10 

 

 
LEGISLATIVE - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE 
AMENDMENT – MOORWOLF, LLC - Chairperson Greene stated this is a request to find the 
proposed Future Land Use Designation consistent with the Comprehensive Plan; and to 
recommend approval of the Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment from “County” Low 
Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) to “City” Office for the property owned by Moorwolf, LLC and 
located at 145 South Wekiva Springs Road. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Mr. Moon stated this is a request to find the proposed Future Land Use 
Designation consistent with the Comprehensive Plan ; and to recommend approval of the Small 
Scale Future Land Use Amendment from “County” Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) to “City” 
Office for the property owned by Moorwolf, LLC and located at 145 South Wekiva Springs Road. 
The applicant is Dailey Design Group, c/o Peter Dailey.  The existing use is a single-family 
residence and the proposed development is an office building with a maximum of 13,917 sq. ft. 
(0.3 FAR).  The current zoning is “County” R-1 (ZIP) and the proposed zoning is “City” PO/I 
(Professional Office/Institutional).  The existing maximum allowable development is a single 
family residence and the proposed development is up to 13,917 sq. ft. of office use.  The tract size 
is 1+/- acre. 
 
The applicant intends to use the subject property for a 7,000 sq. ft. business or professional office 
facility.  The subject property was annexed into the City of Apopka on February 7th, 2007, through 
the adoption of Ordinance No. 1900.  A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of 
“Office” is compatible with the designations assigned to abutting properties. The FLUM 
application covers approximately 1 acre.  
 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and 
determined that adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land 
Use Report). Based on the findings of the Land Use report, the proposed FLUM amendment is 
compatible with the surrounding and nearby land uses and the character of the general area.  
 
The existing and proposed use of the subject property is consistent with the Office (max. 0.30 
FAR) Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed PO/I Zoning. 
 
Because this request represents a change to a non-residential future land use designation and 
zoning classification, school capacity determination by Orange County Public Schools is not 
required. 
 
The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board.  
The City properly notified Orange County on September 22nd, 2017 
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending 
approval of the proposed Future Land Use Designation of Office for the property owned by 
Moorwolf, LLC, and located at  
 
Staff recommended the Planning Commission find the proposed Future Land Use amendment 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding 
areas, and recommend approval of the change of Future Land Use Designation from Residential 
Low Density to Office, subject to the findings of the Staff Report. 
 
This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

7



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON NOVEMBER 14, 2017, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
6 of 10 

 

 
Peter Daily, Daily Design Group, 3751South School Avenue, Sarasota, stated he was representing 
Moorwolf LLC.  He concurred with staff and stated he was available to answer any questions. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.    
 
Carol and Tom Adams, 2310 Ashington Park Drive, Apopka, expressed their opposition to the 
proposed project.  They are concerned about the density not being compatible with the surrounding 
area and stormwater drainage in the area. 
 
Mr. Dailey responded that the office building will have a floor to area ratio have of what is allowed 
for the site.  Additionally, the building will be one-story with the appearance of a single family 
residence.  He said that they will meet any requirements for stormwater retention that are required 
by code. 
 
With no one else wishing to speak, Chairperson Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Linda Laurendeau made a motion to find the application consistent with the 

Apopka Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the 
surrounding area; and to recommend approval of the Small Scale Future 
Land use amendment from “County” Low Density Residential to “City” 
Office for the property owned by Moorwolf, LLC and located at 145 South 
Wekiva Springs Road.  Motion seconded by Tony Foster.  Aye votes were cast 
by James Greene, Tony Foster, Linda Laurendeau, Jose Molina, and John 
Sprinkle (5-0).  (Vote taken by poll.) 

 
 
Introductions – Mr. Foster took a moment to inform the Planning Commission that are a couple of 
groups attending to learn about civic processes.  He introduced Denise Prescott, a former co-
worker, and a member of the Wekiva Park Homeowners’ Association; and Art Wilson Jr., Guide 
Right Director of the Orlando Kappa League mentoring program. 
 
QUASI-JUDICIAL - CHANGE OF ZONING – MOORWOLF, LLC - Chairperson Greene 
stated this is a request to recommend approval of the Change of Zoning from “County” R-1 (ZIP) 
to “City” PO/1 (Professional Office/Institutional) for the property owned by Moorwolf, LLC, and 
located at 145 South Wekiva Springs Road.  
 
Attorney Brackens swore-in staff, petitioners, and affected parties for the quasi-judicial item to be 
discussed. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak.  
 
Carol and Tom Adams requested affected party status as they live in the area of the proposed 
project and are concerned regarding drainage issues in the area. 
 
The Commission unanimously agreed to grant Affected Party status to the Adams’. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to 
divulge regarding this item.  No one spoke. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Mr. Moon stated this is a request to recommend approval of the Change in 
Zoning from “County” R-1 (ZIP) to “City” PO/1 (Professional Office/Institutional) for the 

8



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON NOVEMBER 14, 2017, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
7 of 10 

 

property owned by Moorwolf, LLC and located at 145 South Wekiva Springs Road.  The applicant 
is Dailey Design Group, c/o Peter Dailey.  The existing use is a single-family residence and the 
proposed development is an office building with a maximum of 13,917 sq. ft. (0.3 FAR).  The 
current zoning is “County” R-1 (ZIP) and the proposed zoning is “City” PO/I (Professional 
Office/Institutional).  The existing maximum allowable development is a single family residence 
and the proposed development is up to 13,917 sq. ft. of office use.  The tract size is 1+/- acre. 
 
The subject property was annexed into the City of Apopka on February 7th, 2007, through the 
adoption of Ordinance No. 1900.  Presently, the subject property has not yet been assigned a “City” 
zoning category.  The applicant is requesting the City to assign a zoning classification of PO/I 
(Professional Office/Institutional District) to the property.   
 
A request to assign a change of zoning to PO/I is compatible to the adjacent zoning classifications 
and with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area. The change of zoning 
request is being processed in conjunction with a future land use amendment from “County” 
Residential Low to “City” Office. 
 
The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent with the proposed Office (Max. 30% 
Floor Area Ratio) Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed Professional 
Office/Institutional Zoning classification. Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed 
by the Future Land Use policies.  
 
The proposed future land use change will result in an insignificant increase (less than 9) in the 
number of residential units which could be developed at the subject property.  Therefore, the 
property is exempt from school capacity enhancement per the School Interlocal Planning 
Agreement. 
  
The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board.  

The City properly notified Orange County on September 22, 2017. 
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending 
approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from “County” R-1 to “City” PO/I for the property 
owned by Moorwolf, LLC, and located at 145 S. Wekiva Springs Road. 
 
Staff recommended the Planning Commission find the proposed amendment consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas; and to 
recommend approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from “County” R-1 to “City” PO/I for the 
property owned by Moorwolf, LLC, and located at 145 S. Wekiva Springs Road. 
 
This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
In response to questions by Mr. Molina, Mr. Moon stated that at the site plan phase, the applicant 
will be required to provide stormwater calculations to show that stormwater retention will be 
handled on-site. 
 
In response to questions by Mr. Sprinkel, Richard Earp, P.E., City Engineer stated that the site 
would be required to be designed to hold a 100 year rain fall event.  During and after the recent 
storms, the area experienced rain events caused flooding beyond a 100 year rain fall event.  It was 
worse in this area because of the closed basin.  When this project is constructed the code will 
require that all stormwater be retained on site. 

9



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON NOVEMBER 14, 2017, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
8 of 10 

 

 
Petitioner Presentation:  Mr. Dailey, having been sworn in, said he is representing the owners of 
the property, Moorwolf, LLC, for the property located at 145 South Wekiva Springs Road.  The 
parcel is approximately one acre in size.  The property was annexed into the City in 2007.  We are 
trying to build a small office complex on this facility.  We believe it is a good transition use 
between the church to the north, the assisted living facility to the south and the shopping center 
located across Wekiva Springs Road from this lot.   We are requesting to go from “County” R-1 
(ZIP) and from single family residential to “City” PO/I (Office) which is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and the character of the area.  Access to the site would be from Wekiva 
Springs Road that is a five-lane road with the middle lane being the turn lane that would allow safe 
access.  Any traffic impact that the proposed project would have is deminimus.  When we come in 
with the site plans we will have to meet all of the codes of the City and St. Johns River Water 
Management District with regard to the drainage.  Due to the small size of the parcel, we do not 
feel there will be any impacts to the surrounding areas due to drainage issues. We request that the 
Commission recommend approval of the change of zoning. 
 
Affected Party Presentation: Mr. and Mrs. Adams reiterated their concerns expressed earlier in the 
meeting and requested that the Planning Commission require that the development be required to 
retain the stormwater on the site. 
 
In response to a question by Chairperson Greene, Attorney Brackens stated that the stormwater 
requirements would be more appropriately addressed during the site plan review. 
 
In response to a question by Chairperson Greene, Mr. Dailey stated that they have not begun the 
site plan preparation.  They are concentrating on getting the appropriate future land use and zoning 
changes and once those have been addressed they will begin the site plan preparation. 
 
In response to a question by Mr. Foster, Mr. Earp stated that the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA) updated the flood maps in 2009.  Prior to adoption of the amendments, FEMA 
sent maps out to floodplain managers and engineers for their review and comments. 
 
In response to a question by Mr. Molina, Mr. Earp stated that retaining the stormwater onsite will 
benefit Lake Cortez. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.   With no one wishing to speak, 
Chairperson Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Jose Molina made a motion to find the application consistent with the Apopka 

Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code, and recommend adoption 
of the change of zoning from “County” R-1 (ZIP) to “City” PO/I (Professional 
Office/Institutional) for property owned by Moorwolf, LLC and located at 145 
South Wekiva Springs Road.  Motion seconded by John Sprinkle.  Aye votes 
were cast by James Greene, Tony Foster, Linda Laurendeau, Jose Molina, and 
John Sprinkle (5-0).  (Vote taken by poll.) 

 
QUASI-JUDICIAL - CHANGE OF ZONING – PAUL & KIMBERLY REHN - Chairperson 
Greene stated this is a request to recommend approval of the Change of Zoning from R-1AAA 
(Residential Single Family) to AG-E (Agricultural Estate) for property owned by Paul and 
Kimberly Rehn located at 2393 Appy Lane. 
 
Attorney Brackens swore-in staff, petitioners, and affected parties for the quasi-judicial item to be 
discussed. 

10



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON NOVEMBER 14, 2017, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
9 of 10 

 

 
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak. 
No one spoke. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to 
divulge regarding this item.  No one spoke. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Phil Martinez, Planner I, stated this is a request to recommend approval of the 
Change in Zoning from R-1AAA (Residential Single Family) to AG-E (Agricultural Estate) for 
property owned by Paul and Kimberly Rehn located at 2393 Appy Lane.  The existing and 
proposed uses are as a single family home, a horse barn, and a mobile home.  The Future Land 
Use is Very Low Density Suburban Residential (Max. 2 du/ac).  The existing maximum allowable 
development is up to 20 dwelling units; and the proposed maximum allowable development is up 
to 4 dwelling units.  The tract size is 10.0 +/- acres. 
 
The property owner requests to change the zoning to Agriculture Estates so that horses and other 
domestic animals can continue to legally occur at the property.  Currently, the subject property has 
a barn and corral fences.  The subject property has a horse barn which is prohibited in the existing 
R-1AAA zoning district. In order for the property owner to be in compliance with the City’s Land 
Development Code, the two subject parcels require Agriculture Estate District zoning.  
 
The existing and proposed use complies with the Agricultural Estate zoning district and the Future 
Land Use designation, Very Low Density Suburban Residential. Site development cannot exceed 
the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies.  
 
The proposed future land use change will result in an insignificant increase (less than 9) in the 
number of residential units which could be developed at the subject property.  Therefore, the three 
acres are exempt from school capacity enhancement per the School Interlocal Planning Agreement. 
 
A notification was not required for this project. In accordance with our Joint Planning Agreement 
with Orange County, when a city parcel is not adjacent to an unincorporated parcel, no notification 
is required for a rezoning action.  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the change of zoning consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area.  Planning staff 
recommends approval for the zoning change, R-1AAA to Agricultural Estate District.  
 
Staff recommended that the Planning Commission find the change of zoning to Agricultural 
Estates to be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the 
surrounding area, and recommend to change the zoning from R-1AAA to Agricultural Estates for 
the property owned by Paul and Kimberly Rehn, subject to the findings of the Staff Report. 
 
In response to a question by Mr. Sprinkle, Mr. Moon stated that in order for the property owners 
to sell the property and to continue to have horses the change of zoning is required. 
 
This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
Petitioner Presentation:  None. 
 
Affected Party Presentation: None. 
 

11



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON NOVEMBER 14, 2017, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
10 of 10 

 

Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.   With no one wishing to speak, 
Chairperson Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Jose Molina made a motion to find the application consistent with the Apopka 

Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code, and recommend adoption 
of the change of zoning from R-1AAA (Residential) to AG-E (Agricultural 
Estate) for the property owner by Paul and Kimberly Rehn located at 2393 
Appy Lane.  Motion seconded by John Sprinkle.  Aye votes were cast by James 
Greene, Tony Foster, Linda Laurendeau, Jose Molina, and John Sprinkle (5-
0).  (Vote taken by poll.) 

 
OLD BUSINESS: None. 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  None. 
 

ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 6:21 p.m. 
 
 
 
James Greene, Chairperson 
 
 
 
James K. Hitt  
Community Development Director 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12



Page 13 
 

  

13



Page 14 
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
1. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – From “County” Rural 

to “City” Mixed Use Interchange (0-5 du/ac) for property owned by Orlando Beltway Associates and the 
West Parcel is located west of S.R. 429 and north of Kelly Park Road and the East Parcel is east of S.R. 
429 and north of Kelly Park Road.  (Parcel ID Nos. 12-20-27-0000-00-100 – East Parcel; 12-20-27-0000-
00-047 – West Parcel)  

  

14



CITY OF APOPKA 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  December 12, 2017 
          ANNEXATION       FROM:  Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 
          OTHER:           Zoning Map 
           Aerial Map 
           Kelly Park Interchange Area 
           WPIVP Character Districts 
           Comp Plan Objectives 
           JPA Amendment No. 2 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE 
AMENDMENT – ORLANDO BELTWAY ASSOCIATES    

 
PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 12-20-27-0000-00-100 (east of S.R. 429) 
    12-20-27-0000-00-047 (west of S.R. 429) 
 
Request:   LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
    FROM:    “COUNTY” RURAL  
    TO:       “CITY” MIXED USE INTERCHANGE (0 – 5 DU/AC) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 

 

OWNER:   Orlando Beltway Associates 

 

APPLICANT: VHB  

 

LOCATION: West Parcel: west of S.R. 429 and north of Kelly Park Road 

 East Parcel: east of S.R. 429 and north of Kelly Park Road 

 

EXISTING USE: Agriculture – grazing 

  

CURRENT ZONING:  “County” RCE-2 (ZIP) 

 

PROPOSED 

DEVELOPMENT: West Parcel: Consistent with Employment Overlay District of the Kelly Park 

Crossing Form-Based Code Area 
East parcel: Consistent with Neighborhood Residential Overlay District of the  

Kelly Park Crossing For-Based Code Area. 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Mixed Use Interchange Zoning District with Transition (east parcel) Overlay Zone, and 

with Employment Overlay Zone (west parcel) 

TRACT SIZES:   West Parcel:  51.0 acres +\- 

East Parcel:   56.5 acres +\- 

 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
DISTRIBUTION: 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby   IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director   Police Chief    Recreation Director 15



PLANNING COMMISSION - DECEMBER 12, 2017 
ORLANDO BELTWAY ASSOCIATES – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 

 
SUMMARY (CONTINUED): 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE  

DEVELOPMENT: 

WEST PARCEL: EXISTING: Max. 51 residential units 

PROPOSED: Max. 1.1 million square feet commercial\ 

industrial\institutional or 382 residential units, or 

a combination 

 

EAST PARCEL: EXISTING:     Max. 56 residential units 

PROPOSED:   Max. 847 residential units 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Presently, the subject properties do not have a “City” future land use designation 
or “City” zoning classification assigned. The applicant requests a future land use designation of “City” Mixed 
Use Interchange.  Presently, the applicant proposes a residential subdivision on the parcel east of State Route 429. 
The residential subdivision is in the Transition Overlay Zoning Districts, as defined in the Kelly Park Crossing 
Form-Based Code. 
 
Policy 20.9, Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan, requires that a Mixed Use Interchange future 

a land use designation must be assigned to the property. 

 

The subject parcels are located within the one-mile radius from the Wekiva Parkway interchange at Kelly Park 

Road; and therefore is required to adhere to the Kelly Park Crossing Form Based Code.  The two parcels are 

located within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area.  Therefore, the property must comply with 

Objectives 18 – 20 and related policies within the Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan and the 

recently adopted Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based Code.  The applicant’s request is consistent with the Mixed 

Use Interchange future land use designation and the Overlay District covering the property within the Vision Plan. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is compatible with the 

character of the surrounding area, is within one mile of the SR 429/Kelly Park Road interchange, and is consistent 

with the Mixed Use Interchange Land Use designation.  City planning staff supports the FLUM amendment given 

the consistency with the Comprehensive Plan policies listed below and the intent of the Wekiva Parkway 

Interchange Vision Plan a (see Land Use Analysis below).   Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed 

by the Future Land Use policies.  

 
Future Land Use Element 
 

1. Policy 3.1.r The primary intent of the Mixed Use land use category is to allow a mixture of residential, 
office, commercial, industrial, recreation, institutional and public facilities uses to serve the residential and 
non-residential needs of special areas of the City.  The mix of land uses may occur on a single parcel or 
multiple parcels … 
 
The designation of a mixed use category may occur only in certain areas of the city, including “land 
anticipated for inclusion within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Land Use Plan…” These properties are 
within the 1-mile radius of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange depicted on the Wekiva Parkway Interchange 
Vision Plan Map located within the Future Land Use Element of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan. 
 

2. Policy 18.1 The City shall implement the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan, which guides the 
location of a range of uses, such as residential, office, commercial, industrial, recreation, public and 
institutional, at various densities and intensities around the proposed interchange. 
 
 16



PLANNING COMMISSION - DECEMBER 12, 2017 
ORLANDO BELTWAY ASSOCIATES – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 

 
The proposed Mixed Use Future Land Use Designation allows for residential densities and non-residential 
uses and intensities to implement the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan, consistent with Objective 
18 and related policies.  
 

3. Policy 18.2 Prior to rezoning any property within a one-mile radius of the interchange Study Area, the City 
shall amend its LDC to incorporate development standards that will implement the Vision Plan. 
 
This future land use amendment does not include a corresponding proposed zoning category because the 
City has yet to adopt development standards or form-based code consistent with this policy.  Future 
densities/intensities and design character for the subject properties will be regulated at the time of rezoning 
once Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan design standards and form-based code are adopted.   
 

4. Policy 20.4 Prior to approving the first development plan with the Wekiva Parkway Interchange vision 
Plan Area, the City shall adopt the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Form-Based Cod establishing the design 
and development standards for the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area. 
 
The subject properties will be required to comply with the above policy should the development submit a 
development plan to ensure consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Wekiva Parkway Interchange 
Vision Plan. 
 

5. Policy 20.9 Development within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Plan Area shall be assigned a Mixed-
Use Interchange future land use designation and shall accomplish an overall mix of residential and non-
residential uses as outline in Policy 3.1.r.  Assignment of the Mixed-Use Interchange Land Use future land 
use designation shall require an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The applicant’s request for a Mixed Use future land use designation is consistent with this policy, as well 
as the intent of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan area, which intends to concentrate a mixture 
of land uses with varying densities and intensities within one mile of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange. 
 

6. Policy 20.3.  The annexation, land use change, and subsequent development of lands located within the 
Wekiva Parkway Interchange Plan Area for Apopka and the Wekiva Interchange Land Use Plan Overlay 
for the County shall be consistent with the adopted Interlocal Agreement between Orange County and the 
City of Apopka regarding Wekiva Interchange Land Use Plan Overlay. 
 

7. Objective 19 and 20, and their associated policies.  See objectives and policies within the supporting 
information. 

 
Transportation Element 
 

1. Policy 4.2 The City of Apopka shall promote, through the implementation of programs such as mixed-use 

land development, projects that support reduced travel demand, short trip lengths and balanced trip 

demand. 

 

The Mixed Use future land use designation allows for a mixture of land use types such as residential and  

non-residential, which promotes shorter trip lengths, concentrated development to reduce travel demand. 

 

2. Policy 3.1.r The primary intent of the Mixed Use land use category is to allow a mixture of residential, 

office, commercial, industrial, recreation, institutional uses and public facilities uses…This mix of land 

uses may occur on a single parcel or multiple parcels in the form of: a permitted single use; a vertical 

combination of different permitted uses; or a horizontal mix of different permitted uses. 

 

 17



PLANNING COMMISSION - DECEMBER 12, 2017 
ORLANDO BELTWAY ASSOCIATES – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 

 

3. Policy 4.2 The City of Apopka shall promote, through the implementation of programs such as mixed-use 

land development, projects that support reduced travel demand, shorter trip lengths and balanced trip 

demand. 

 

4. Objective 20 and associated Policies, Future Land Use Element.  Provided with the Supporting 

Information. 

 

VISIONING AND SPECIAL STUDIES:  The properties are located within the boundaries of the Wekiva 

Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area, making it subject to the Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based Code, Mixed- 

Use Interchange Zoning District and Neighborhood, Transition, and Employment Overlay Districts.  A copy of 

the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan is provided with the support material. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:   An executed capacity enhancement agreement with Orange County Public 

Schools will be required prior to adoption of the future land use amendment. 

 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 
public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on August 15, 2017.    Notification 
has already occurred through the Second Amendment to the Joint Planning Agreement with Orange County 
government.  The second amendment acknowledges that the City will assign a land use designation similar to the 
overlay district illustrated in the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

December 12, 2017– Planning Commission (5:30 pm)  

January 3, 2018 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading & Transmittal 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

November 28, 2017– Public Notice and Notification 

November 28, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification 

November 28, 2017– Ordinance Heading & Public Notice ¼ Page Ad w/Map 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval to transmit a change in Future Land Use to Mixed 

Use Interchange for the property owned by Orlando Beltway Associates subject to the information and findings 

in the staff report. 

 

Recommended Motion:  Find the Future Land Use Designation consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 

recommend a change in Future Land Use Designation to Mixed Use Interchange for the properties owned by 

Orlando Beltway Associates subject to the information and findings in the staff report. 
 

Note: This item is considered legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and made a 

part of the minutes of this meeting. 

18



PLANNING COMMISSION - DECEMBER 12, 2017 
ORLANDO BELTWAY ASSOCIATES – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 

 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Rural Settlement P-D (ZIP) Grazing\Agriculture 

East (County) Rural  A-1 and R-CE Single Family Residential 

South (County) Rural A-1 Horticulture Nursery, Woodlands, Single Family Homes  

West (County) Rural A-1  Single Family Homes 

 
The properties have access from Plymouth-Sorrento Road and Effie Drive.  
 
II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 
Analysis for the Future Land Use Designation was performed as part of the adopted Wekiva Parkway Interchange 
Vision Plan.  This Vision Plan has been incorporated into the Comprehensive Plan.  The subject property straddles 
the one-mile radius from the interchange, and the property owner has selected to pull the entire property into the 
Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based Code Area (aka Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area). 
 
Therefore, the proposed Mixed Use Interchange future land use designation is consistent with the general future 
land use character and long-range planning goals of the surrounding area.  
 
 Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area: Yes 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement on 
October 26, 2004 and amended the JPA in October 19, 2010 to address the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision 
Plan.  The subject property is consistent with the Vision Plan incorporated into Amendment 2 of the Wekiva 
Parkway Interchange Vision Plan. 
 
 Transportation:  Road access to the site is from Plymouth Sorrento Road to the East and Effie Drive to the 
West. Road systems must be consistent with the Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based Code. 
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act: The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the adopted 
Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  The proposed amendment is consistent with the adopted 
mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been reviewed against 
the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of Apopka's adopted 
Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and storm water run-off through the following policies: 

 
 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2; Objective 19, 20. 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that both parcels appear to occur within an area having a potential for  karst features. 
  
Analysis of the character of the Property:  The current use of the property is for agriculture. Analysis of the FLUM 
designation occurred as part of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan. 
 19



PLANNING COMMISSION - DECEMBER 12, 2017 
ORLANDO BELTWAY ASSOCIATES – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 

 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: Based on the adoption of the 
JPA, the size of the property, and the proposed land use change, the amendment will increase the population by 
as many as 525 residents.  The applicant proposes to develop the property as single family residential. Land use 
analysis was conducted as part of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan. 
 
CALCULATIONS: 
 
EAST PARCEL ADOPTED: 56 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 150 persons 

PROPOSED: 847 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 2,253 persons  
 
WEST PARCEL ADOPTED: 51 Unit(s) x 2.659 p\h = 135 persons 

PROPOSED: 1.1 million square feet commercial\industrial\institutional, or (382 units x  
  2.659 p\h) 1,017 persons  or combination of both. 

   
 Housing Needs:  The housing need is demonstrated through the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan 
area Study. 
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: A habitat study is required for 
developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  At the time the Master Site Plan or Preliminary Development 
Plan is submitted to the City, the development applicant must conduct a species survey and submit a habitat 
management plan if any threatened or endangered species are identified within the project site. 
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 
3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan.  .  The road system shall be consistent with the intent of the 
Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based Code. 
 
 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None; 81 GPD/Capita ; 81 GPD / 

Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  20,972  GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  331,012  GPD 

   

4. Capacity available:  Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation: 81  GPD/Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: None 
 

 Potable Water Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard: None; 177 GPD/Capita ; 177 GPD / 

Capita 

  

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka 20



PLANNING COMMISSION - DECEMBER 12, 2017 
ORLANDO BELTWAY ASSOCIATES – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 

 

  

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:    22,470  GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  397,870  GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177  GPD / Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177  GPD / Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None 

 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area:  Yes 
 

 Solid Waste 

 

1. Facilities serving the site:  City of Apopka 

 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 

 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  1,140  lbs/  day 

 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  11,212  lbs /  day 

 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None  

 

 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 
 

 Infrastructure Information 

 

 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 

 

 Permitting agency: St. John’s River Water Management District 

 

 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  9.353  MGD 

 

 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696  MGD 

 

 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 

 

 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 
 

 Drainage Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site:   None 

 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm  21



PLANNING COMMISSION - DECEMBER 12, 2017 
ORLANDO BELTWAY ASSOCIATES – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 

 

 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm 

 

4. Improvement/expansion: On site retention / detention ponds 

 

 Recreation 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System ;  3 acre / 1000 capita 

 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.855  acres 

 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  6.759 acres 

 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of development 

approval. 
  

22



PLANNING COMMISSION - DECEMBER 12, 2017 
ORLANDO BELTWAY ASSOCIATES – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 

 

Orlando Beltway Associates 

Property Owners 

107.47 +/- Acres 

Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From:  No City FLUM assigned 

To: Mixed Use Interchange 
Parcel ID #:  12-20-27-0000-00-100 & 12-20-27-0000-00-047 

  
 

VICINITY MAP  

 

 

 

 

  

23



PLANNING COMMISSION - DECEMBER 12, 2017 
ORLANDO BELTWAY ASSOCIATES – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 24



PLANNING COMMISSION - DECEMBER 12, 2017 
ORLANDO BELTWAY ASSOCIATES – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 11 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 25



PLANNING COMMISSION - DECEMBER 12, 2017 
ORLANDO BELTWAY ASSOCIATES – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 12 

 

 

 

Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based Code Area 

 

        

26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



Page 53 
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
1. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – ADAMS BROTHERS CONSTRUCTION COMPANY - Owned by Adams 

Brothers Construction Company, c/o Aaron Adams and located between Tilden Avenue and South Apopka 
Boulevard on the south side of East 13th (Parcel ID #: 15-21-28-0000-00-210) 

  

53



    

CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISION 

   

  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

  X  PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: December 12, 2017 

       ANNEXATION  FROM:  Community Development  

       PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Vicinity/Aerial Map 

  X  OTHER: Final Development Plan   Site/Landscape Plans 

             Building Elevations 

  Alternative Parking Plan 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

PROJECT:         FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – SITE PLAN - ADAMS BROTHERS / 644 

EAST 13TH STREET 

       
Request: RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

FOR THE ADAMS BROTHERS / 644 EAST 13TH STREET PROJECT 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 

 
OWNER/APPLICANT:  Adams Brothers Construction Company, c/o Aaron Adams 
 
ENGINEER:   Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc./David Clutts, P.E.  
 
ARCHITECT: L.R. Huffsterler, Inc. 
 
LOCATION: East 13th Street (Between Tilden Avenue and South Apopka Boulevard east on 

the south side of East 13th Street) 
 

PARCEL ID #:  15-21-28-0000-00-210 
 
LAND USE: Industrial 
 
ZONING: I-1 
 
EXISTING USE: Vacant Land 
 
PROPOSED USE: Light Industrial 
 
TRACT SIZE:   2.92 +/- acres  
 
BUILDING SIZE: 42,068 sq. ft. 
__________________________________________________________________________________________  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director    Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)           HR Director     City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby      IT Director     Fire Chief  

Community Dev. Director        Police Chief     Recreation Director  

 

 

 

 

 54



PLANNING COMMISSION – DECEMBER 12, 2017 
ADAMS BROTHERS – 644 EAST 13TH STREET FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Industrial R-T-2 Residential 

East (City) Industrial I-1 Warehousing 

South (City) Industrial I-1 Warehousing 

West (City) Industrial I-1 Vacant Industrial 

         

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The Adams Brothers Project Final Development Plan proposes a light industrial 

business to be housed in an open 42,068 square feet pre-engineered open metal building.  The 1.96 acre site is 

located on the south side of East 13th Street between Tilden Avenue and South Apopka Boulevard. The south side 

of the site is bounded by Florida Central Railroad tracks. 

       

PARKING:  A total of 42 parking spaces are provided of which 2 are reserved as a handicapped parking space. 

The City’s LDC methodology for calculating required parking for industrial uses would require 89 spaces, but 

based on parking demand at the applicant’s existing facility, which is on the adjoining parcel to the east, this is 

more than double the needed parking. To validate this assertion, the applicant has conducted a parking study using 

rates in the ITE Parking Generation Manual, 4th Edition. This analysis was conducted according to the 

requirements in 6.0.301.H.1 LDC and has been reviewed by the City Engineer. Based on the analysis and 

information provided by the applicant about parking at the existing facility, it has been determined that 42 parking 

spaces are sufficient to accommodate vehicles for employees and customers.  

 

ACCESS:  Access to the site is provided by a two (2) driveway cuts along East 13th Street.  The separation of the 

driveways meets City standard  

 

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS:  At its highest point at the ridge, the proposed building is 36’ 6” and at the eaves, it 

is 32’ 6”, making the mean height of the building 35’. According to 1.08.13 LDC, the definition of building height 

is “The vertical distance from the grade to the highest point of a flat roof or a mansard roof or to the mean height 

level between the eaves and ridge for gable, hip and gambrel roofs.” Therefore, the building meets the LDC for 

building height building. Regarding the building elevations, staff has found those proposed for this project to be 

in accordance with the City’s Development Design Guidelines. 

   

STORMWATER:   The master stormwater management system is designed according to standards set forth in 

the Land Development Code.  

 

BUFFER/TREE PROGRAM:  The applicant has provided a detailed landscape and irrigation plan for the 

property. The planting materials and irrigation system design are consistent with the water-efficient landscape 

standards set forth in Ordinance No. 2069.   

 
The following is a summary of the tree replacement program for this project: 
Total inches on-site: 198 

Total number of specimen trees: 0 

Total inches removed 198 

Total inches retained: 0 

Total inches replaced: 198 

Total inches post development: 

      

198 

 55



PLANNING COMMISSION – DECEMBER 12, 2017 
ADAMS BROTHERS – 644 EAST 13TH STREET FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
December 12, 2017 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

December 20, 2017 - City Council (7:00 pm)  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Adams Brothers – 644 East 13th Street 

Project Final Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

Planning Commission Recommendation:  Find the Adams Brothers Final Development Plan consistent with 

the Land Development Code and Comprehensive Plan, and recommend approval of the Adams Brothers – 644 

East 13th Street Project Final Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

Planning Commission Role:  The role of the Planning Commission for this development application is to advise 

the City Council to approve, deny, or approve with conditions based on consistency with the Comprehensive Plan 

and Land Development Code 
 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

56



PLANNING COMMISSION – DECEMBER 12, 2017 
ADAMS BROTHERS – 644 EAST 13TH STREET FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 

 
Application:  Final Development Plan 

Owner:   Adams Brothers Construction Company 

Applicant:                  Adams Brothers Construction Company / Aaron Adams 

Engineer:  Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc./David Clutts, P.E. 
Parcel I.D. No:    15-21-28-0000-00-210 
Location:  East 13th Street 
Acres:  2.92 acres +/-  

 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 
 

 

SUBJECT PROPERTIES 

57



PLANNING COMMISSION – DECEMBER 12, 2017 
ADAMS BROTHERS – 644 EAST 13TH STREET FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 

 
Application:  Final Development Plan 

Owner:   Adams Brothers Construction Company 

Applicant:                  Adams Brothers Construction Company / Aaron Adams 

Engineer:  Civil Engineering Solutions, Inc./David Clutts, P.E. 
Parcel I.D. No:    15-21-28-0000-00-210 
Location:  East 13th Street 
Acres:  2.92 acres +/-  
  

AERIAL MAP 

 
 

 

 

  

 

SUBJECT PROPERTIES 

58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



Page 71 
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
2. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – KMG FENCE NEW HEADQUARTERS – Owned by KMG Fence, LLC, c/o 

Karen Grimsley and Joe Grimsley and located on Johns Road (Northwest corner of Johns Road and 
Bradshaw Road). (PARCEL ID #: 09-21-28-3986-00-010) 

  

71



    

CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISION 

   
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

  X  PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: December 12, 2017 

       ANNEXATION  FROM:  Community Development  

       PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Vicinity/Aerial Map 

  X  OTHER: Final Development Plan   Site/Landscape Plans 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

PROJECT:         FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – SITE PLAN - KMG FENCE NEW 

HEADQUARTERS 

       
Request: RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

FOR KMG FENCE NEW HEADQUARTERS 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: KMG Fence, LLC, c/o Karen Grimsley and Joe Grimsley 
 
ENGINEER:   Unroe Engineering, Inc., c/o Darcy Unroe P.E.  
 
LOCATION: Johns Road (Northwest corner of Johns Road and Bradshaw Road) 

 
PARCEL ID #:   09-21-28-3986-00-010 
 
LAND USE: Industrial 
 
ZONING: I-1 
 
EXISTING USE: Vacant Land 
 
PROPOSED USE: Office (3,000 sq. ft.) / Warehouse (9,000 sq. ft.)  
 
TRACT SIZE:   1.96 +/- acres  
 
OVERALL SITE:  1.96 +/- acres   
 
BUILDING SIZE: 12,000 sq. ft. 
 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Industrial I-1 Cooper Commerce Center 

East (City) Industrial I-1 Bradshaw Road 

South (City) Industrial I-1 Johns Road 

West (City) Industrial I-1 Vacant Property 

_____________________________________________________________________________________  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)           HR Director    City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby      IT Director    Fire Chief  

Community Dev. Director        Police Chief    Recreation Director  
72



PLANNING COMMISSION – DECEMBER 12, 2017 
KMG FENCE NEW HEADQUARTERS - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The KMG Fence, LLC is a fence installation business that is relocating 

its office and warehouse to this site in the City of Apopka. The site is comprised of two parcels that were 

approved in 2009, as part of Johns Road Commerce Park, a six parcel industrial subdivision. The 12,000 

square feet building will be used as an office and warehouse. In addition, there will be outside storage on 

the site that will be placed at the rear of the site on both sides of the building, behind a black chain link 

fence with screening.   

       

PARKING:  A total of 30 parking spaces will be provided (28 required by code), two of which are reserved 

as a handicapped parking space.   

 

ACCESS:  Access to the site is provided by a single driveway pre-existing curb cut on Johns Road located 

230 feet west of Bradshaw Road.   

 

TRANSPORTATION: Using ITE Trip Generation Rates, 9th Edition, the estimated project trip generation 

is 87 daily trips, 12 a.m. peak hour trips and 12 p.m. peak hour trips. 

 

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS:  The height of the proposed building is 40’ (top of parapet wall). The City 

approved a variance on October 10, 2006 for the overall building height for this project not to exceed 50'. 

The proposed height 40’ is well below the maximum that could be built. Staff has found the proposed 

building elevations to be in accordance with the City’s Development Design Guidelines. 

   

STORMWATER:   Stormwater run-off and drainage will be accommodated offsite within the master 

stormwater drainage system approved for the Johns Road Commerce Park. 

 

BUFFER/TREE PROGRAM:   As part of the Johns Road Commerce Park development plan approval, the 

site was prepared with a metal and cement fence and landscaping buffer along Johns Road and Bradshaw 

Road. The buffer includes a lustrum hedge along both roads and twelve oak trees within the buffer. The 

applicant has provided a detailed landscape and irrigation plan for the KMG Fence New Headquarters site 

that complies with the requirements of the City’s Land Development Code. The planting materials and 

irrigation system design are consistent with the water-efficient landscape standards set forth in Ordinance 

No. 2069.  

 

TREES: There are twelve live oak trees on the site within the existing landscape buffer that was installed 

in 2009 after the approval of the Johns Road Commerce Park subdivision. The site was cleared and graded 

at that time so no clearing is required for this project.  

 

Total inches on-site: 366 

Total inches removed 0 

Total inches retained: 366 

Total inches added: 44 

Total inches post development:                       410 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
December 12, 2017 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

December 20, 2017 - City Council (1:30 pm)  

  

73



PLANNING COMMISSION – DECEMBER 12, 2017 
KMG FENCE NEW HEADQUARTERS - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 

 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the KMG Fence New Headquarters Final 

Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

Planning Commission Recommendation:  Find the KMG Final Development Plan consistent with the 

Land Development Code and Comprehensive Plan, and recommend approval of the KMG Fence New 

Headquarters Final Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

Planning Commission Role:  The role of the Planning Commission for this development application is to 

advise the City Council to approve, deny, or approve with conditions based on consistency with the 

Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code. 
 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

74



PLANNING COMMISSION – DECEMBER 12, 2017 
KMG FENCE NEW HEADQUARTERS - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 

 
Application:  Final Development Plan 

Owner:   KMG Fence, LLC/Karen Grimsley and Joe Grimsley 

Applicant:                  KMG Fence, LLC 

Engineer:  Unroe Engineering, Inc./Darcy Unroe P.E. 
Parcel I.D. No:    09-21-28-3986-00-010 
Location:  Johns Road @ Bradshaw Road 
Acres:  1.96 acres 

 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 

75



PLANNING COMMISSION – DECEMBER 12, 2017 
KMG FENCE NEW HEADQUARTERS - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 

 

 

 
Application:  Final Development Plan 

Owner:   KMG Fence, LLC/Karen Grimsley and Joe Grimsley 

Applicant:                  KMG Fence, LLC 

Engineer:  Unroe Engineering, Inc./Darcy Unroe P.E. 
Parcel I.D. No:    09-21-28-3986-00-010 
Location:  Johns Road @ Bradshaw Road 
Acres:  1.96 acres 
  

AERIAL MAP 

 

 
 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 

76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



Page 84 
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
3. PLAT - NORTHWEST DISTRIBUTION CENTER II REPLAT LOTS 3 & 4 – Owned by Oakmont Apopka 

Road LLC and located west of Ocoee Apopka Road, east of SR 451, and north of SR 414. (Parcel ID #s: 
17-21-28-5953-03-000; 17-21-28-5953-04-000) 

  

84



CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
    

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

  X  PUBLIC HEARING      MEETING OF: December 12, 2017 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      FROM:  Community Development  

       PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

  X  OTHER:  Replat                      Aerial View  

           Replat  

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

PROJECT:  NORTHWEST DISTRIBUTION CENTER II REPLAT LOTS 3 & 4 

       

REQUEST:  APPROVE THE NORTHWEST DISTRIBUTION CENTER II REPLAT OF 

LOTS 3 & 4. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 

 

OWNER/APPLICANT: Oakmont Apopka Road LLC 

 

SURVEYOR:   Leading Edge Land Services, Inc., c/o Jeffrey D. Hofius, P.S.M 

 

LOCATION:   West of Ocoee Apopka Road, east of SR 451, and north of SR 414. 

 

LAND USE:   Industrial 

 

ZONING:   I-1 

 

EXISTING USE:  Platted subdivision for industrial, commercial and office uses 

 

PROPOSED USE:  Replat of a portion of the Northwest Distribution Center II affecting Lots 3 

and 4. 

 

OVERLAY ZONING: None 

 

SIZE:    16.44 +/- Acres 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilshiemer    Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk    

City Administrator Irby                       IT Director    Fire Chief  

Community Dev. Director   Police Chief    Recreation 
 
 

 

  

85



PLANNING COMMISSION – DECEMBER 12, 2017 

NORTHWEST DISTRIBUTION CENTER II REPLAT LOTS 3 & 4 

PAGE 2 

 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Owners of the Northwest Distribution Center II request approval of a 

modification to the existing plat to address changes to their development plans for the property.  The change 

is necessary to accommodate a single building that will occupy Lots 3 and 4.  Changes to the plat involve 

combining Lots 3 and 4 into a single lot, to be known as Lot 1.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

Planning Commission – December 12, 2017, 5:00 p.m. 

City Council – December 20, 2017, 7:00 p.m. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Northwest Distribution Center II Replat 

of Lots 3 and 4, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

Recommended approval (5-0) of the Northwest Distribution Center II Replat of Lots 3 and 4, subject to the 

findings of this staff report. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
  

86



PLANNING COMMISSION – DECEMBER 12, 2017 

NORTHWEST DISTRIBUTION CENTER II REPLAT LOTS 3 & 4 

PAGE 3 

 

Application:  Northwest Distribution Center Replat Lots 3 & 4 
Owner/Applicant: Oakmont Apopka Road LLC 
Surveyor:  Leading Edge Land Services, Inc., c/o Jeffrey D. Hofius, P.S.M 
Parcel ID No’s:   17-21-28-5953-03-000 & 17-21-28-5953-04-000  
Project Site:  Lots 3 & 4 
Total Acres:  16.44 +/- 

 

 

  VICINITY MAP 

 
 

 

 
  

Replat Lots 3 & 4 

87



PLANNING COMMISSION – DECEMBER 12, 2017 

NORTHWEST DISTRIBUTION CENTER II REPLAT LOTS 3 & 4 

PAGE 4 

 

Application:  Northwest Distribution Center Replat Lots 3 & 4 
Owner/Applicant: Oakmont Apopka Road LLC 
Surveyor:  Leading Edge Land Services, Inc., c/o Jeffrey D. Hofius, P.S.M 
Parcel ID No’s:   17-21-28-5953-03-000 & 17-21-28-5953-04-000  
Project Site:  Lots 3 & 4 
Total Acres:  16.44 +/- 

 

AERIAL VIEW 

 

 

 

 
 

Replat Lots 3 & 4 

88



89



90



91



92


	Top
	1 12-12-17 - PC - Minutes - Approve 11-14-17 PC Minutes
	PC 11-14-17 Minutes.pdf

	1. 12-12-17 - PC - Public Hearing - Comp Plan Large Scale FLUM - Orlando Beltway Assoc.
	1 Orlando Beltway FLUM PC 12 12 17 PS additions.pdf
	2 Wekiva Parkway Interchange Plan Character Districts.pdf
	3 Future Land Use Element_Policy 18.pdf
	4 JPA 2nd Amend_Signed.pdf

	1. 12-12-17 - PC - Site Plan - Adams Bros. Construction - Final Development Plan
	1 Adams Bros Planning Commission Staff Report 11-8-17.pdf
	2 - Final Devel Plan &amp; LS  Rev  17-10-20 11 X 17.pdf

	2. 12-12-17- PC - Site Plan - Final Development Plan - KMG Fence LLC
	1 KMG Fence PC 12-12-17.pdf
	2 KMG FDP site 12-12-17 (004).pdf

	3. 12-12-17 - PC - Site Plans/Plats - NW Distribution Center, Lots 3 &amp; 4 - Plat
	1 Northwest Distribution Center PC 12-6-17.pdf
	2 NW Distribution Ctr RePlat - 08.31.17.pdf

	Bottom

